
MINUTES – JANUARY 15, 2011

The Caswell County Board of Commissioners met in special session at the Caswell County
Senior Center in Yanceyville, North Carolina at 9:00 a.m. on Saturday, January 15, 2011.
Members present: Nathaniel Hall, Chairman, Kenneth D. Travis, Vice-Chairman, Erik D. Battle,
Jeremiah Jefferies, Cathy W. Lucas and Gordon G. Satterfield. Absent: William E. Carter. Also
present: Kevin B. Howard, County Manager, Brian Ferrell, Interim County Attorney and Angela
Evans representing The Caswell Messenger. Paula P. Seamster, Clerk to the Board, recorded the
minutes.

MOMENT OF SILENT PRAYER

Chairman Hall opened the meeting with a Moment of Silent Prayer.

BOARD RETREAT

Chairman Hall welcomed everyone and stated that the purpose of this work session was to plan
for the rest of the calendar year and that the idea was to work on an agenda for the next twelve
months. The goal is to not leave things hanging. Sheriff Michael Welch was present during a
portion of the meeting to discuss issues relating to the jail project.

Commissioner Lucas asked what the resolution on Tuesday’s agenda was for on the jail. Mr.
Howard responded that Paul Jacobson would be at Tuesday night’s meeting to explain the
process. There will also be a public hearing in February. Commissioner Lucas asked Sheriff
Welch if he was getting positive feedback from the public. She stated that she was concerned
with the way the economy is and how the public would react. Sheriff Welch responded that all
of the feedback he has received has been positive. He also stated that this process started in 2009
when the Board was looking at doing some repairs on the building. He stated there was
extensive work that had to be done to bring the building back up where it should be. The
plumbing was a major issue. Sheriff Welch also stated that if the jail closed the county would
have to pay another county to house the inmates.

Commissioner Travis stated that everybody knows that the county needs a jail. The people in his
district state that the county needs to build what the county can afford and then add to it as
needed. He did not think the county could afford eight to ten million dollars right now. He also
stated that he thought the county could do something cheaper. Commissioner Travis stated that
he is not against building a jail. The county has to build a jail or put these people somewhere
else. He stated that the county needed to look at alternatives.

Commissioner Hall stated that all issues raised would be put on the agenda. He asked the
commissioners to jot down their items and to get them to the Clerk to the Board and the issues
would get put on the agenda.



Rules of Procedure

Chairman Hall stated the Commissioner Lucas had brought the Rule of Procedure issue up at the
first meeting in December. He asked for any input.

Commissioner Travis stated that the Board needed to meet on the first and third Monday of the
month at 6:30 p.m. unless there is a holiday. The Board needed to stay on a schedule and that
the agenda needed to be spread between the two meetings.

Chairman Hall stated that the time was the issue. It has been questioned if the Board could meet
in the morning on one meeting and at night for the other.

Commissioner Travis stated his preference was to leave the meetings as they are. Commissioner
Lucas stated she did not have a preference. She did state that it would make it convenient for
some of the public to come in the morning. Commissioner Satterfield stated that the issue he had
with both meetings being at night was the county employees accruing comp time for these
meetings. He also stated that a lot of people come to these meetings from other counties and it is
an inconvenience to them. It also eliminates the ability for taxpayers to come if they work
second shift. Commissioner Satterfield also stated that from a taxpayer’s perspective the Board
needed to eliminate comp time.

Commissioner Battle stated that he would not be available to attend day meetings because of his
job. He asked Chairman Hall if the time was changed if this would present an issue with his
seat. Chairman Hall stated the Board did not have a set policy but he would have the attorney to
check the general statutes. Chairman Hall stated the Board can make a request to have that seat
filled but he did not know the procedure. He stated that this issue would be put on the agenda for
Tuesday’s meeting.

Attorney Ferrell stated that the general statute only requires the Board to meet one time per
month and that the Board has to meet on the first Monday in December.

Chairman Hall stated that the changes to the Rules of Procedures need to be done when new
board members come on board.

Boards and Committees

Chairman Hall stated that for the past year or two the Board has not had these committees (Audit
& Finance, Building & Grounds, Personnel, and Information Technology). He continued by
stated that the Personnel Committee could address the issue with comp time. He did not feel that
comp time had been handled consistently. He also suggested having the attorney look at the
comp time policies. The Personnel Committee could also do the research on the work plans for
the Tax Director, County Manager and Clerk to the Board. Once the Personnel Committee has
completed the research, the information could be brought back to the Board.



Chairman Hall stated with the Building and Ground Committee, this group could work with staff
to look at the ages of roofs, HVAC systems, etc. Then the Board would know how to budget
these items in the capital budget.

Chairman Hall stated with the Information Technology Committee, this group could expand our
technology policy. He stated that the County had experienced an embarrassing issue but he was
not going to go into that at this meeting. He continued by saying that the County has had
situations where the staff has misused the information technology policy. Commissioner Lucas
asked if this was included in the personnel policy. Chairman Hall responded it is in the
personnel policy but who is enforcing it. Commissioner Travis stated that this information
should be in the rules and regulations. He also stated if the staff does not the policy they cannot
follow it. Chairman Hall stated the staff supervisors are supposed to monitor the use of the
information technology.

Commissioner Battle stated this is twofold: policy and permission. Firewalls should be put in
place. This is a separate issue from the paper policy that they sign when hired. Chairman Hall
stated that this was the reason why a committee was needed. Commissioner Travis agreed that
the committee were needed. Commissioner Battle also agreed.

Chairman Hall stated that the County also needed a Fleet Management Committee. He stated
that the Board allows current money to dictate what the County gets. He stated that the County
may need to have a fleet that everyone can use. Commissioner Travis suggested having a
committee that looks at the repairs. This committee would contract the work out. He added that
the County is supposed to be getting bids on each job. He did not think this was happening.
Chairman Hall stated that the County did not have the staffing for a Purchasing and Accounts
Payable Department. He stated that the Board needs to figure out how to do this with the staff
that the County already has. Commissioner Travis stated that he spends a lot of time calling
places to get the best price. Commissioner Lucas stated that during her previous term three bids
had to be gotten. Mr. Howard stated it depended on what it is if it requires three bids.
Commissioner Travis added the County needs to get a good price and also good quality. The
best price does not always mean the best quality. Commissioner Battle added that a mile radius
needs to be established for certain items. Commissioner Lucas agreed. Commissioner Travis
stated that the County could buy its own parts. Mr. Howard asked if the County could have their
own mechanic and that this person could do all the repairs. Commissioner Satterfield stated that
the Motor Fleet Management had a set list of charges based on the type of vehicle. It would not
be difficult for the County to get this list. Chairman Hall stated that the Board needed to get a
policy that worked for Caswell. He stated that some things work well for the state but they may
not work for Caswell. He asked if the County needed some type of purchasing policies. He
added that this would require some trained staff. Commissioner Battle added that this person
knows this type of information and can check the specs.

County Zoning

Chairman Hall stated that he had heard several comments from citizens regarding zoning. Mr.
Howard stated that Tuesday night a lady will be coming to address zoning before the Board. She
has been looking at the ordinances. Chairman Hall asked if the Board wanted to move in this



direction. He also stated the Board does not need a lot of public hearings for this. Commissioner
Satterfield stated that two years ago the Board had a meeting where zoning was discussed. He
stated that he thought the County had moved forward on this issued. He also applauded the
County Manager for what he was doing on this issue. Chairman Hall stated that the Board had a
lot of discussions but failed to move forward. Commissioner Lucas stated that we have a
Planner on staff why he is not following up on this issue. Chairman Hall stated that the Planner
does not have the experience to do this. Commissioner Battled added that the County needed to
have a legal staff to review this issue. Commissioner Lucas asked what the duties of the Planner
are. She stated that the previous planner had the capabilities. He had the resources to work on
the Land Use. Chairman Hall stated that this was nothing compared to what is need in the
County. He stated that the County has grown and needs some type of zoning. Commissioner
Lucas stated that the majority of citizens will accept zoning if it protects their land.

Chairman Hall stated that every time an investor comes in the county the Board would not have
the citizens coming and complaining. He stated that the Board has talked about the rural part of
our community and that the farms are going out. Commissioner Travis stated that the Board
passed an ordinance that a citizen could not put a junkyard within a quarter of a mile of a church
but the Board did not state it the other way. He stated when the Board makes an ordinance it
needed to be presented both ways. Commissioner Lucas asked Commissioner Satterfield what
the thought process was before when the Board tried to get zoning in the county. Commissioner
Satterfield stated that the citizens did not want zoning. Chairman Hall stated that this is where
education comes in to play. He stated that the members on the Board needed to be convinced
that this is the way the county needed to go before moving forward. He also stated that the
Board needed to think about the twenty-five thousand plus citizens and not just the seven on the
Board. Commissioner Travis asked if the Board was going to vote on this or it is going to be put
before the people. Mr. Howard stated that it is not required to be put before the people.
Attorney Ferrell stated that there is a process that has to be followed.

Commissioner Travis asked if the Board was going to vote for zoning. Chairman Hall answered
yes. Commissioner Satterfield stated that years ago he was anti-zoning. He now looks at zoning
as a planning tool. He added that it will help the county to grow in an organized way. He also
stated it is never a good time to spend tax dollars.

Chairman Hall stated that he would consult the County’s attorney and staff and report back to the
Board.

Commissioner Lucas asked Commissioner Satterfield if during his time were Industrial Parks
opposed by the citizens. Commissioner Satterfield responded with no. Chairman Hall
responded that there was some opposition. Commissioner Lucas stated that this was zoning.

Code Enforcement

Chairman Hall stated that code enforcement goes back to infrastructure. He stated that the Board
did not have a good end result with the Outdoor Storage Ordinance. Commissioner Battle stated
that his problem is the property above the 86 Convenient Mart. He stated that the ordinance



reads they have to have the vehicles on their personal property. The equipment is still sitting
there. The Board was told that the equipment was still being used for business purposes.
Attorney Ferrell stated that he would be meeting with Brian Collie on enforcement issues. He
also stated that he would talk to the Board on any of the ordinance issues.

Commissioner Travis asked about the old house and barns that are caving in. Chairman Hall
responded that the County’s Health Code and Safety Code may cover those issues. He also
stated that the County did not have an ordinance to cover these types of situations.

Commissioner Lucas asked if the Board was discussing how to handle code enforcement or
certain instances. Chairman Hall responded code enforcement as a whole. Commissioner Lucas
asked who handle this. She stated that she had heard that the Sheriff handled then and she had
also heard that the County Manager did. Mr. Howard stated that Brian Collie was dealing with
the issues at hand and that Charlie King is helping Brian since the lake is closed for the winter.
Chairman Hall stated that the bottom line was that the County had the ordinance it is up to the
County to enforce them.

Commissioner Battle stated the County has Charlie doing background work and he does not do
this on a daily basis. Man power is needed and it is going to cost money. Commissioner
Satterfield added he knew that the County has limited resources but why is the Sheriff’s
Department not required to help on this issue. Attorney Ferrell responded a violation of a county
ordinance is a misdemeanor and in a lot of areas the Sheriff’s Department does not have the
resources to do this. Commissioner Satterfield stated that the County’s law enforcement drives a
lot of miles every month. He also stated that it is the Board’s responsibility to inform the Sheriff
that they are to bring these issues to our attention. Chairman Hall stated he was not sure if the
Sheriff had been asked to do this. Commissioner Lucas and Commissioner Travis stated that the
Sheriff has been asked. Commissioner Satterfield added in their travels how long would it take
for a deputy to note a violation. The last time Mr. Collie brought a list of ten or twelve people
before the Board the Board waived the violations. Commissioner Satterfield stated that the
Board needed to stand behind Mr. Collie and that the Board needed to stick with the rules that
the Board sets. Chairman Hall stated that consistency is what the Board needs. The Board needs
to stand behind its staff. Commissioner Satterfield stated that the Board needed an update on all
the people who were waived in the past. Commissioner Satterfield added that the conversation
needed to be also extended to the County’s newly elected DA’s office.

Attorney Ferrell stated that the Board has the option of civil penalty. Commissioner Satterfield
stated that the people needed to be charged with a misdemeanor so it will set precedence on
enforcing the local ordinances because it is the law. Chairman Hall stated that he would have a
discussion with the Sheriff and with the DA. Commissioner Travis stated that he would like to
be included in the meetings with the Sheriff and DA.

Financial Accounting and Tax Office Software

Chairman Hall stated that he was disappointed and concerned about two pieces of software that
the County was told would work together and they do not. He was talking about the Finance
software and the Tax Office software. Commissioner Travis asked if the Tax Office was still



writing off things after ten years. Chairman Hall responded with practically speaking yes.
Commissioner Battle asked if the County had looked at something to make the two systems talk
to one another. Chairman Hall stated that the County was told that the two softwares would
work together. He thinks they will work but the appropriate training is needed. Chairman Hall
asked the County Manager to get with Finance and the Tax Office to have them give the Board a
summary of what and where they are and if they think it is important to move forward with this
or if the County needed to shift its automation. Then the question will be how long the County
will be able to use this system. Commissioner Lucas asked if this was a new system in the tax
office. Mr. Howard responded no. He added that the County just went through an upgrade. The
servicer and the server and the hardware in order to use the software. Chairman Hall stated that
these two systems should talk to each other and it should not take several months to get a report.
Commissioner Travis asked if the staff knew how to use the equipment. Commissioner
Satterfield stated that the County has used ACS for six years and it should also communicate
with Inspections. He stated that they keep telling me that they are waiting on codes.
Commissioner Lucas asked who they were. Commissioner Satterfield answered Finance.
Chairman Hall stated that at the next meeting the Board wants a status of where we are with the
system and how soon it will take to make the systems work together.

Capital Budget

Chairman Hall stated that once a Building and Grounds Committee is formed they will have to
define the capital budget.

Commissioner Travis stated that with the Tax Office they need to make sure that the older bills
are paid first. Commissioner Satterfield stated that with his conversations with Mr. Bernard, he
stated that a person can specify which year they are paying for and that it is a general statute.
Commissioner Travis stated that the Board needed to find out what is needed to move forward.
He also stated that he has to pay his taxes and that everyone else should have to pay theirs and
that no one should be allowed to have their bill dropped off because it is old. Chairman Hall
stated he would find out if this is a general statute or not. Commissioner Battle stated he knew
that the Board has asked for a report for the past ten years. He asked what Rockingham County
did that Caswell does not do. He asked how much the County was owed and what was the rate
of what was owed. Chairman Hall stated that the County tends to do things that sound good at
the time. Chairman Hall has been told by the tax office that the old tax bills have been turned
over to an attorney who is on contract. He also stated that the Board needed to talk about the
policies and procedures of the tax office. Mr. Howard explained that the reason the tax director
applied the money to the current bills is the budget officer looks at the percentage from the
previous year to budget for the next year. Chairman Hall stated that the County cannot
artificially inflate the numbers collected and they he would get the Board some answers.



Unfinished Business

County Borders Survey

Chairman Hall stated that three or four years ago the county boarders were resurveyed. There
were some border differences with Rockingham and Alamance counties. The county needs to
get this finalized. The Board needs to get the survey people to get the lines finalized.

Work Plans

Chairman Hall stated he planned to turn the work plans over to the Personnel Committee.

Boards and Committees

Chairman Hall stated the Board appoints people to the boards but the Board does not tell the
people what the Board expects them to do. This needs to be addressed. Commissioner Travis
stated that the Boards needed to have rules and regulations. He also stated that half of the board
did not know what to do. He suggested that the chairman of each board come before the Board
and tell the Board what they are doing.

Commissioner Satterfield asked if the Board could get a copy of what each board does. The
Board of Health has a list of rules and they have an attendance policy. He requested a scope or
summary of each board. He asked that the County Manager or Personnel Committee review this.

Chairman Hall stated that most of the boards are meeting. Commissioner Satterfield stated that
the Personnel Committee could meet with these boards. Chairman Hall asked the Clerk to get a
complete list of board and the chairs.

Chairman Hall asked the Commissioner if there were other items that needed to be put on the
agenda. Commissioner Battle asked to have a follow up sheet on the items that actions have
been taken on.

Commissioner Lucas stated that she would not be able to attend the Legislative Goals
Conference. Chairman Hall asked if there was anyone who wanted to attend.

Commissioner Satterfield stated that he agreed with all 53 items that were listed.

Commissioner Lucas asked if the Board could meet with the new legislatures and have some
face to face contact.

Commissioner Satterfield stated that one thing they have talked about is shifting their
responsibilities over to the counties. He stated the Board did need to meet with them and to let
them know that they cannot do this. He added another thing that they make broadband available
to the county. Mr. Howard responded that this has already been started.



Commissioner Satterfield stated that he thought the work session was real good and that the
Commissioners might need to meet quarterly. He also stated that they may need to include the
Department Head and talk to them informally to stay on top of things.

Commissioner Jefferies agreed that the work session was good and that the Board needed to have
them more often.

Commissioner Battle stated he thought the evaluation format needed to change. Mr. Howard
responded that some counties set goals and they evaluate their county manager based on those
goals.

Commissioner Jefferies stated he thought the Board needed to have their budget done in May
and that the Board needed to start the budget process in March. Chairman Hall stated that staff
needed to be asked for some basic figures so the Board would have a base to budget on.

Chairman Hall stated that he would schedule another work session in the near future for the next
quarter.

Commissioner Lucas asked the status of the audit. Mr. Howard responded that the audit was
complete and that it would be discussed in February.

Mr. Howard stated that he had accepted open bids on the Pelham water tanks and that the low
bid came in around six hundred and ninety-nine thousand ($699,000.00) dollars. He informed
the Board that he would present this information at Tuesday’s meeting. Mr. Howard also stated
that he would like to take the difference in the grant monies to install sewer lines in the park.

THE ADJOURNMENT

At 12:50 p.m. the special session was adjourned by Chairman Hall.

________________________________ ___________________________
Paula P. Seamster Nathaniel Hall
Clerk to the Board Chairman

******************************************************************************




